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Questions and answers 
 

Vinkovci to Tovarnik to State Border Railway Rehabilitation  

(Civil Engineering and Track Works)  

Vukovarsko – Srijemska County, Croatia 

 

1. Publication reference 

          EuropeAid/123209/D/WKS/HR 

     2. Procedure 

    Open 

3. Programme 

     ISPA 

4. Financing 

          ISPA 2005/HR/16/P/PT/001 Vinkovci to Tovarnik to State Border Railway Rehabilitation 

5. Contracting authority 

          Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Croatia, Central Finance and Contracting Unit 

 
QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

1. Is it possible that instead of foreign parent 
Company, the subject tender be submitted by its 
subsidiary from Zagreb using at that the references of 
its owner and founder? This subsidiary is registered in 
Croatia and is 100% owned by the mother company. 

1. The Companies' subsidiary may submitt an offer in 
their name and regarding the references to be used 
(i.e. from a patent Company) the following definition 
stipulated in paragraph three of the Tender Form 
applies: 

"An economic operator may, where appropriate and for 
a particular contract, rely on the capacities of other 
entities, regardless of the legal nature of the links 
which it has with them. It must in that case prove to the 
Contracting Authority that it will have at its disposal the 
resources necessary for performance of the contract, 
for example by producing a Letter of  undertaking on 
the part of those entities to place those resources at its 
disposal. Such entities, for instance the parent 
Company of the economic operator, must respect the 
same rules of eligibility and notably that of nationality, 
as the economic operator". 

2. May a company, which is 100% owned by the 
Croatian state (Croatian Railways), be a member of 
joint/venture consortium? 

2. Participation of the subsidiary companies of the 
Croatian Railways (CR dependent companies) in the 
tendering process for ISPA Measure "Vinkovci to 
Tovarnik to State Border" will not be possible.  

Namely, the basic precondition for the sucessful 
tendering proces is the assurance of a fair competition 
with equal rules and opportunities for all tenderers 
regardless of the country of origin, as derives from the 
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following provisions: 

a) Article 2.3.7. of the Practical Guide to contract 
procedures for EC external actions; 

 "Any firm or expert participating in the preparation of a 
project must be excluded from participating in tenders 
based on this preparatory work, unless they can prove 
to the Contracting Authority that the involvement in 
previous stages of the project does not constitute 
unfair competition." 

b) Article 2.4.10. of the Practical Guide to contract 
procedures for EC external actions; 

" Whatever the procedure used, the Contracting 
Authority must ensure that conditions are such as to 
allow fair competition"… …" (especially in cases in 
which publicly-owned companies, non-profit 
associations or non-governmental organisations are 
taking part in a tender procedure alongside private 
companies), the Contracting Authority must carry out 
checks and request any additional information 
necessary"… 

c) Article 52 of the European Commission Financial 
Regulation (01 May 2007); 

"1. All financial actors and any other person involved in 
budget implementation, management, audit or control 
shall be prohibited from taking any action which may 
bring their own interests into conflict with those of the 
Communities. Should such a case arise, the person in 
question must refrain from such actions and refer the 
matter to the competent authority. 

2.  There is a conflict of interests where the impartial 
and objective exercise of the functions of a financial 
actor or other person, as referred to in paragraph 1, is 
compromised for reasons involving family, emotional 
life, political or national affinity, economic interest or 
any other shared interest with the beneficiary." 

Since subsidiary companies are owned by Croatian 
Railways they would be in conflict of interest if they 
would participate in Tendering procedure and would 
breach provisions of Practical Guide and Financial 
Regulation as stipulated above. 

 

3. May a company, which is 100% owned by the 
Croatian state (Croatian Railways), be a sub-
contractor to the tenderer? 

3. Please see answer number 2. 
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4. If a company, which is 100% owned by the Croatian 
state (Croatian Railways), can be a sub-contractor to 
the tenderer, than, may it be the sub-contractor to 
more tenderers, or is it  limited to just one tenderer? 

4. No. As stated by article 5. of the Instructions to 
Tenderers: ''Submission or participation by a tenderer 
in more than one tender for a contract will result in the 
disqualification of all those tenders for that contract in 
which the party is involved''. 

Therefore, companies that are 100% owned by the 
Croatian State (Croatian Railways) can not be 
subcontractors. 

5. Is it allowed that a private company be a sub-
contractor, or a material supplier, to several tenderers 
(tender)? For example: can it be the supplier of road 
gravel, tampons, rails, sleepers, etc? 

6. May the operating units of the HŽ-Infrastrukture 
d.o.o. (Rail Track Maintenance, Maintenance of 
Electro System, Maintenance of Signaling System, 
Traffic Service – Traffic Organization, etc.) be the sub-
contractors to the tenderer? (It is impossible to carry 
out some of tender works without support of certain 
units of the  HŽ-Infrastrukture d.o.o., as based on 
regulations of the Law and Rule books, only they are 
authorized to manipulate „alive“ systems of the railway, 
e.g. switching off the power, adjusting the signaling 
system, managing the railway traffic, etc.) 

 

 

5. Supplier is not considered to be a sub-contractor., 
Article 5. of the The Instructions to Tenderers - Only 
one Tender per Tenderer does not apply to the 
suppliers. Please see answer number 4. 

6. Please see answer number 2. 

According to the Volume 3, Technical Specifications 
the Final Beneficiary will: 

“The appointed representatives of the Final 
Beneficiary (Croatian Railways), as the Employer's 
representatives, shall be responsible for the co-
ordination of the operating units of the Final 
Beneficiary, the contracting parties and the Engineer 
in all points necessary for the correct performance of 
the Measure. 

All the services and works to be performed by the Final 
Beneficiary during the execution of this Contract are 
mentioned consequentially in these Technical 
Specifications. These services and works to be 
performed, as well as the goods to be submitted to the 
Contractor by the Final Beneficiary as a “free-issue” 
material in accordance with Sub-Clause 4.20 of the 
GCC, will be at no cost to the Contractor.” 

7. While carrying out the tendered works, will it be 
allowed to use heavy rail-track machinery not earlier 
mentioned in the tender conditions: machinery for 
excavation and embedding buffers (AHM-800, PM-
200-1), machinery for gauge replacement (SUZ-500, 
SUZ-350), which machinery can fulfill all requested 
technical standards and all working operations set by 
the bill of costs? 

7. No.  

The machines listed in the question do not 
correspond to the requirements defined in Volume 3, 
chapters 2.(Performance of works) and 2.9.(Sections 
between stations) where a description of phases of 
works, schedule and progress of works (2.9.1.) and 
the machinery (2.9.4.) for the requested work 
technology are defined.  

The technology of works set out in chapter 
2.9.(Sections between stations) is defined as such 
due to the weak and unstable sub-soil and thence 
specific requirements were derived as follows: 

1. Open excavation 1 m deep in length of 400 m to 
maximum 800 m enables continuous measuring 
and testing of compressibility (at each 200 meters) 
on the formation level (sand-layer base) and 
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according to the results the preparation of surface 
with an adequate number of passings by static roller 
in designed lateral inclination.  
If during the excavation weak sections are 
discovered that have not been detected by geo-
mechanical drilling and tests (at each 500 m), such 
zones being of non-coherent material (clay and dust 
material or peat), the additional stabilisation of the 
formation shall be done by pressing of old ballast 
into the clay and dust material of the embankment 
to achieve the designed/requested compressibility.  

2. The sand-layer shall insure the water-resistance to 
prevent water penetration down to the level of 
bedding, especially in case of non-coherent 
formation material. Only a sand-layer material of a 
particular grain size in accordance to the attached 
grain-size curve and moistened and compressed by 
compactors guarantees the water-resistance. The 
requested grain-size curve can not be reached and 
controlled if the sand-layer is placed by AHM 800 
making a mixture of crushed old ballast and new 
material.  
The results of the compressibility tests at each 200 
m on the sand-layer surface shall determine the 
compacting energy necessary to reach the required 
degree of compression, if necessary by multiple 
passing of compactors. 

 
The work technology and the machines requested in 
the Tender dossier are a result of the above explained 
circumstances. 
 

8. We kindly ask you for your explanation of the 
following:  

In the tender documentation TENDER DOSSIER, 
Volume 1, Section 4, Further Information, Item 4, For 
bearers: basic technical data of the bearer 
.......................,   

exactly what kind of material we are talking about, and 
in which lines of the bill of costs the subject material 
and corresponding works are described? 

8. “Bearer” is a term used for the turnout sleepers (with 
no inclination). 

 

9. In which lenght should the removed old rails be cut? 9. Tender Dossier does not stipulate any specific 
requirements to the Tenderer regarding the cutting 
lenght of rails. It is up to the Tenderer to decide in 
which length the removed old rails should be cut. 

10. In case of the concrete-sleepers we have a 
question about the specification: 

You wrote, that it is only allowed to deliver sleepers 
with pretension at the end of each sleeper, (it means 

10. No. Technical Specifications are result of the 
experience of Croatian Railways - Infrastructure 
engineers with concrete sleepers installed into the 
track (twin-block sleepers, long line technology and 
pretensioning at the ends of each sleeper). The same 
technology (pretensioning at the ends of each sleeper) 
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the sleeper have to be end-anchorage sleepers). 

In this way it will be a limitation to a very small circle of 
suppliers. (for example the sleepers from Vibrobeton)  

Is it possible to deliver other prestressed concrete 
sleepers but without end-anchorage, for example ‘’B70 
from Pfleidere’’ or ‘’L2 from MABA’’? 

that is required in the TS is present in Germany, Italy 
and other countries.  

 

11. We request to inform about the technical and 
quality specifications of the 

� Geotextile – Pos. 2.1.7. 

� Geo-net – Pos. 2.1.8. 

11. Please see Volume 3, Technical Specifications, 1.5 
Substructure, 1.5.1. Track Formation and Sand-Layer, 
last paragraph and 1st Attachment to these 
Specifications: Extract from the Geo-technical Study 
(Geotextile – 4.1.1. Usage of Geo-Syntetics; Geo-Net 
– 4.1.2 Usage of Geo-Grids). 

12. To the joint-venture is asked an average annual 
total turnover equivalent or superior to 70.000.000 of 
Euro in the last 3 years; the group leader must boast 
an average annual total turnover equivalent or superior 
to 35.000.000 always in the 3 years, at this point we 
ask what is the minimum average annual turnover  
demanded to the partners of the joint-venture? 

12. The Joint Venture/Consortium as a whole is 
required an average annual turnover equivalent to or 
exceeding EUR 70.000.000, but the lead member of 
joint venture /consortium as an individual Company 
must have an average annual turnover equivalent to or 
exceeding EUR 35.000.000. Minimum criteria for other 
partners of the joint-venture in this respect are not 
defined. 

13. In the event of joint-venture, to the group leader it 
is asked to have realized at least one of the two 
projects of the same nature and complexity 
comparable to the works concerned by the tender for 
at least 30 million euros, and what about the other 
members? With which minimal percentage must they 
satisfy this requirement? What is the amount of similar 
jobs that also they must have carried out in last the 5 
years? 

13. In the event of a joint-venture, apart from the 
minimum selection criteria that are defined for the lead 
member, the other partners in a joint-
venture/consortium must only have the ability to carry 
out at least 10% of the works. There are no additional 
specific requirements for the other members of a joint-
venture/consortium. 

14. Ultimately we would like to know: if the leader can 
satisfy the whole 100% of the requirements (2 projects 
of minimum 30 million and the total turnover of 70 
million for the last three years), does this mean that the 
other members can enter with 0? (apart from the ability 
to carry out at least 10% of the works) 

14. Please see answers number 12 and 13. However, 
please take notice of the criterion number 6 of the 
Article 4, paragraph 4.2 of the Instructions to 
Tenderers – Selection Criteria that relates to any other 
member of a joint venture/consotrium. 

15. In the Form 4,1 “General Information about the 
tenderer”, at the sub point  4.1.8  it is demanded to 
enclose copy of “registration certificate”: do you mean 
the Chamber of Commerce or which other document? 

And in the Form 4.5b Volume 1, 4 Section “Legal 
Entities - Private Companies”, at the bottom of the 
page it is demanded to enclose a document, which 
ONE? Still the Chamber of Commerce or which other?  

Do you require us to submit a Certificate of the 
Bankrupt Court (certifying the absence of bankruptcy 
proceedings, arrangement with creditors …)? 

15. Yes, that is correct. The official document of the 
Chamber of Commerce, or other national authority 
which is responsible to issue the registration 
certificate, is required. 

Same answer as above. 

 

Yes, that is correct. Official document from the relevant 
national authority certifying the absence of bankruptcy 
proceedings, arrangement with creditors, etc., is 
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required. 

16. What do you mean by “register of companies”? 
Does it correspond to our Italian certificate issued by 
the Chamber of Commerce? 

16. Please see answer number 15. 

17. The key personnel that must be employed at the 
work sites (see Form 4.6.1.2 Volume 1 section 4 
“Personnel to be employed on the contract”) can it be 
submitted by the joint-venture in its complex, or every 
single Party (group leader and other Parties) must give 
the name for each professional qualification (in relation 
to the respective typology of works, to be executed by 
each party)? 

17. If the tender is submitted by the joint 
venture/consortium, the required personnel shall have 
required years of appropriate experience, with the 
company in construction (ITT 4.1.5, FORM 4.6.1.2). In 
case of joint venture/consortium company means joint 
venture/consortium as a whole (all partners). 

 

18. With regard to the key personnel, for “Principal Site 
Engineer” do you mean a graduated technician 
necessarily in engineering, or can he be “Qualified 
Industrial Technician with  Electrotechnical 
Specialization” and with more than 10  years of 
experience? 

18. Principal Site Engineer is required to have “at least 
2 successfully completed projects of the same nature 
and complexity as a leading site engineer”. 

The information provided by the Tenderer will have to 
prove it and enable the Contracting Authority to check 
the references. 

19. The Forms 4.6.8 and 4.6.9 are not clear to us. We 
do not understand if these are just information or 
specific requirements to satisfy. Do the Form 4.6.8 
need signature?  

 

19. Forms 4.6.8. and 4.6.9. are requirements that must 
be satisfied. A signature on Form 4.6.8. is requested. 

Form 4.6.8. first sentence: „The following details 
describe the support facilities for the usage of the 
Engineer which are to be provided and maintained by 
the Contractor:…….” 

The Tenderer shall confirm that all listed requirements 
shall be fulfilled in case he is selected for award of 
contract (see Evaluation Grid, Item 44).  

Form4.6.9:  

“The Tenderer shall add here all technical 
documentation, statements and certificates for the 
material offered, as it is defined in the Tender Dossier, 
Volume 3 Technical Specifications, Chapter 3 
Requirements for Quality and Acceptance of Materials, 
as well as in the Volume 1, Section 1, Instruction to 
Tenderers, sub-clause 4.1.5: 

The tenderer must include in his tender the following 
information:……..” 

The Tenderer shall include in his tender all required 
documents. If the documents do not confirm that the 
materials to be supplied will be in accordance with the 
Technical Specifications, the Tender will be rejected 
(see Evaluation Grid, Items 32-43). 

20. At the point 4.3 Volume 1 section1: “Instructions to 20. If the requirements from point 4.3 of the 
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tenderers” they specify some fulfilments in case of 
joint-venture: do these have to come out from a 
specific declaration (there is no forms with this 
respect)? And above all are they to be fulfilled  
subsequently to the eventual award of the job? 

Instructions to Tenderers are not confirmed in any of 
the Forms that are part of the Tender Dossier, a 
signed declaration from a Tenderer will be required 
and enclosed to the offer. 

21. At point 14.3.9 they demand “cashflow 
statements”, can we prepare an appropriate prospect 
or he is sufficient to enter the financial data in the 
appropriate form? 

21. Both, the financial data must be entered in the  
appropriate Form 4.4 - Financial Statement and and an 
appropriate prospect prepared. Also, the expected 
cash flow statement for the project must be enclosed 
following the Form 4.6.3 - Workplan and programme. 
The expected cash flow statement must be in line with 
critical milestone bar chart (schedule of execution of 
the works) representing the construction programme 
and detailing the relevant activities and dates as 
requested under Form 4.6.3.  

22. GENERAL PART, POINT 3: PARTICIPATION: 

Which documents do you require to demonstrate the 
Sub-clauses 3.1 to 3.3? Is the Chamber of Commerce 
enough? 

22. Tenderers must provide evidence of their status 
and certify that they meet conditions stipulated under 
Sub-clauses 3.1 to 3.3 with a document drawn up by 
relevant national authorities and in accordance with 
their national law or practice. 

23. Do all Tender Forms have to be submitted at 
original templates given in Tender documentation or 
we can copy, rewrite given form or give our own forms 
but with all asked information from original forms? 

23. Please respect the template provided in the Tender 
Dossier and attach supplementary information to the 
existing template. 

24. Which documents should be presented as ‘cash 
flow statements’? Does it mean the financial 
statements for the last 3 years (to be enclosed to 
Tender form 4.4)? 

24. Yes, that is correct. Please see also answer 
number  21. 

25. How does the bill of quantity have to be approved 
and signed? Do all pages have to be signed and 
approved? In the case of making mistake in fulfilling of 
the unit and total prices on which we are making 
correction, is it allowed to strike the wrong amount and 
to write near by the correct amount and to put 
responsible person signature with stamp? 

25. Yes, all pages of the Bill of Quantities constituting 
the financial offer need to be approved and signed by 
the authorised person.  

Yes, in case of making a mistake, it is allowed to strike 
wrongly stipulated unit and total prices and write 
nearby corrected data if this is verified with a signture 
of the responsible person and an official stamp of the 
organisation. Also, please be informed that Tenderers 
must prepare their financial offers and be satisfied with 
stipulated quantities and prices when submitting a 
Tender. 

26. Can we get some more details about necessary 
safety measures during the works – what are our 
obligations and what the obligations of the employer 
concerning that? 

 

26. Following applicable Laws that must be followed 
were translated into English and attached to the 
Tender Dossier: 

- Croatian Occupational Safety and Health Act 
(published in Official Gazette 59/96), 
 
- Corrections of the Occupational Safety and Health 
Act (published in Official Gazette 94/96) and  
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- Changes and Ammendments of the Occupational 
Safety and Health Act (published in Official Gazette 
114/03).  
 
Also, the usual safety measures during the works on 
the track that are mentioned in the Technical 
Specification must be respected. The obligations of the 
Final Beneficiary regarding coordination and training 
are defined in Tender Dossier (see Volume 3, 
Technical Specification, 2.6.2 Site Installation and 
Working Conditions, paragraphs 7 and 8). 
 
Abovementioned legislation is also available at the 
following webpage:   

http://www.nn.hr/sluzbeni-list/sluzbeni/index.asp  

27. There is some discrepancy between the working 
days per week inside the Appendix to tender (5 
working days) and Particular conditions (7 working 
days). Please, give us your clarification? 

27. Appendix to Tender – normal working hours 

Particular conditions, 6.5 Working Hours: 

The works during track possession shall be performed 
continuously 12 hours a day and 7 days a week. …..” – 
this applies to the workers engaged on the works that 
necessarily require a permanent track possession and 
stipulate its duration (substructure works on a track 
formation, track works). 

28. About the use of the existing rails during the 
construction, should it be paid and, if yes, can you 
please give us more details about that issue? 

 

28. If the proposed technology requires using of old 
rails during the construction, that should not be paid 
but the old rails shall be transported and unloaded to 
the depot in Vinkovci Station after usage, in 
accordance with item 1.1.2. of the Bill of Quantities. 

29. Please give us more details about the transport of 
the material from the deposit area to the installation 
place, how it will be paid – per km or some other way? 

29. Deposit areas for different material (except for the 
turnouts, see Volume 3, Technical Specification, 
2.10.3 Installation of Turnouts, 1st paragraph) to be 
purchased by the Contractor, shall be organised by the 
Contractor as well as the transport to the place of 
installation. All these costs are included in the 
respective item of the Bill of Quantities (see Bill of 
Quantities, 1.1. Quantity of Item, paragraph 9.). 

30. Are the steel rail holders included together with the 
sleepers or separately and in which items has to be 
included? 

30. If the “steel rail holders” means the rail elastic 
fastening (see Volume 3, Technical Specification, 3.3 
Prestressed Concrete Sleepers with Elastic 
Fastening), it is included in the item 1.1.4. of the Bill of 
Quantities. 

31. We are interested to know if there will be possibility 
for redemption of the waste material (steel rails, etc.) 
and the discount from the price. 

31. Redemption of the waste material and the discount 
from the price is not possible. 

 

32. Please give us more details about the protection of 32. Nailed steel plates were never used on Croatian 
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the working areas, especially of the area where the 
material exchange should be performed. Will that 
additional protection of the railway track in traffic by 
nailed steel plates be additionally paid and on which 
basis 

Railways network. The overhaul on other sections of 
the same line was done without it.  

If the Tenderer plans to use such protection it will be 
accepted as a part of the proposed technology but it 
will not be additionally paid. 

33. We assume that the quantities for payment will be 
based on the real situation (common surveying) and 
not on the theoretical cross-section of design. Please, 
confirm. 

33. Yes, that is correct. The quantities for payment will 
be based on real situation and as confirmed by the 
Supervising Engineer. Accordingly, please note that 
General Conditions of Contract (FIDIC Red Book) 
stipulate under Clause 12.2: “measurement shall be 
made of the net actual quantity of each item of the 
Permanent Works, …” 

34. Regarding part of Tender for – Vinkovci-Tovarnik-
state border Raillways Rehabilitation – for delivery in 
total of 132.198 meters of rails type 60E1, R260, EN 
13674-2:2003 it is stated (page 49, 3.2.1. – Basic 
conditions for rails 60E1), I quote ''-length of rails: 
continuous casting of minimum 90 m.'' Proizvodnja- 
Regeneracija d.o.o. is producer of flash butt welded 
rails according to all related EU norms (references 
from our buyer: Croatian Railways) 

So our question is: 

- Can we offer flash butt welded rails of required 
quality and total length (in length of maximum 180–200 
m) with flash butt welded joints every 30–36 meters.  

- If not please state technical reasons for requirement 
of continuous casting of 90 meters long rails?   

34. Minimum technical characteristics and 
requirements for track material to be respected and 
accepted by the Tenderer as mandatory for the track 
overhaul material are defined in Volume 3 of the 
Tender Dossier, the Technical Specifications, Section 
3. Requirements for Quality and Acceptance of 
Materials defines “minimum quality standards that 
enable to determine which tenders are technically 
compliant”.  

If the information provided by the Tenderer does not 
confirm that the materials to be supplied will be in 
accordance with the Technical Specifications, the 
Tender will be rejected (see Evaluation Grid, Item 33). 

35. We kindly ask for the comment of the items in the 
bidding bill of quantities:  

1- Superstructure  

1-1 Track:  

Item 1: “Purchase, transport and unloading on 
the top surface of the rail prism, type 60E1“  

m1: 66,099.00 – at the grand total. 

Does the mentioned quantity in the bidding bill of 
quantities refer to m1 of the rails or to m1 of a track? 

35. The mentioned quantity refers to 1 m of the track – 
1 m of track = 2 m of rails 

 

36. As nowhere in the bidding bill of quantities any 
costs of railway traffic organization during executing 
the works have been foreseen, the costs of carriage 
from the neighbouring railway station to the place of 
works at the railway line, the costs of switching off the 
contact network voltage and assurance during the 

36. All support (coordination or works and similar) to 
be provided by Croatian Railways - Infrastructure will 
be provided at no cost for the Contractor (see V3 
Technical Specification, 1.1. last two paragraphs and 
2.2.(b) – coordination; 1.9. second and fourth 
paragraph – level crossings and cables; 2.5.2. and 
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works, the costs of adjusting and maintenance of 
signalling-safety devices during the works, costs of 
traffic coordination, and others, are those costs to be 
included into the bidding price (with each item of the 
bill of quantities where the subject-matter services are 
required), or the subject-matter services will be born by 
the ordering party (Croatian Railways - the 
Infrastructure) at the own account, outside of the 
bidding price? 

2.7.1. – track possession and coordination; 2.12. – all 
necessary support during OLE reconstruction; 2.13 
second and seventh paragraph – maintenance of 
signalling and safety devices). 

All other costs for the services to be provided by 
Croatian Railways - Cargo or Croatian Railways - Train 
Traction or any other service provider shall be included 
in the tender price (see V4 Bill of Quantities, I 
Preamble, 1.1. paragraphs 6 and 9). 

37. Shall the ordering party (Croatian Railways - the 
Infrastructure) assign free of charge some of its 
sidetracks for the placement of the railroad 
mechanisation, and the waste tips for the new and old 
construction material (railway sleepers, rails, buffers, 
etc.) at some of the nearer railway stations, or the 
cession of the trucks and waste tips shall be charged 
to the bidder – contractor? 

37. Sidetracks for the Contractor’s machinery and 
wagons shall be assigned by the Final Beneficiary in 
Vinkovci Freight Station.  

Additional space for temporary storage of new material 
shall be arranged by the Contractor.  

Disposal of old material is defined in: V3, TS 2.9 
paragraph 3 – excavated material; V4 Bill of 
Quantities, 1.1. item 2. – rails, sleepers and fastening, 
1.2.item 1. - turnouts 

38. In which type of the format is the bill of quantities is 
to be filled-in: A-4, or A-3 (A-4 format would make the 
text illegible due to small letters and numbers) ?  

 

38. The bill of quantities shall be in A-3 format so it can 
be easily read and properly understood.  

In addition, please be informed that an electronic 
version of the Bill of Quantities shall be enclosed in the 
Tender Dossier as part of the financial offer. 

39. In the tender documents for the above mentioned 
project (Civil Engineering and Track Works for 
Vinkovci-Tovarnik-State border Railway 
Rehabilitation) in WORKS PROCUREMENT NOTICE 
in section 16 "Selection criteria" in criteria 1. for Joint 
venture/consortium is stated: 

 "1. The joint venture/consortium must be a registered 
firm or natural person legally capable of carrying out 
specified works." 

 In connection with this clause we have a following 
question: 

 Does that mean that joint venture/consortium has to 
register company in Croatia under the Croatian law, or 
it is sufficient to enclose signed Consortium Agreement 
to the offer, as a document indicating all relevant 
relations between the members regarding contract 
execution. If it is required to register a new company 
will it be possible to use references and other 
qualification requirements of the founders and is it 
required to establish a new company prior offer 
submission? 

39. The registration of a branch office or subsidiary of 
the foreign Company will be required after the Contract 
is signed. 

For the purpose of submitting an offer the Consortium 
Agreement is sufficient and therefore it is possible to 
use references of the future founders of a new 
Company established in Croatia. 
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40. in the point 3.5 is required that the suppliers and 
the subcontractors must provide documents and 
certificates as point n. 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4. We want to 
know if all this documents and certificates must be 
provided at the moment of the offer or only in case of 
definitive assignment of the tender. 

40. Documents and certificates that are required under 
Sub-clauses 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 must be provided as 
a part of the Tender. 

41. Clause 4.2, Sub-clause 7: 

''The joint venture/consortium must have successfully 
completed at least 2 projects (each project of minimum 
EUR 30 mil value) of the same nature and complexity 
comparable to the works concerned by the tender (rail 
rehabilitation/construction including technical 
disciplines required for this project) over the last 5 
years. The lead member of a joint venture/consortium 
must have completed at least one of these projects as 
a lead firm.'' 

Does it mean that if a lead partner has successfully 
completed at least 2 projects of the same nature and 
complexity and joint venture partners have not 
completed similar project, joint venture in whole shall 
fufill condition set in above-mentioned Sub-clause, 
since no minimum criteria is stipulated for single 
partner of joint venture?  

41. Please see answer number 13.  

42. Key personel 

Do the site engineers (Principal, Assistant, Quality 
control, and others) must have obtained Professional 
Exam (verification of sufficient knowledge of Croatian 
laws)? 

42. The Key Personnel shall fulfil the requirements 
listed in the Instructions to Tenderers, 4.1.5. second 
bullet.  

In case that the site engineers in question are also 
appointed as Site engineer according to national 
Regional Planning and Building Act they will have to 
fulfil all the requirements imposed by relevant national 
legislation, as follows: 

- Regional Planning and Building Act (published in 
Official Gazette 76/07 - Article 183),  

- Building Act (published in Official Gazette 175/03; 
100/04 - Articles 41 and 61), 

- Regulation on the professional exam, completion of 
knowledge and professional specialisation for persons 
performing building activities (published in Official 
Gazette 82/05) and  

- Regulation on the conditions and measures for the 
issuance of the agreement for the start of construction 
activities (published in Official Gazette 89/06; 139/06).  
 
Abovementioned legislation is also available at the 
following webpage:   

http://www.nn.hr/sluzbeni-list/sluzbeni/index.asp 



Vinkovci to Tovarnik to State Border Railway Rehabilitation 

(Civil Engineering and Track Works) 

 
ISPA 2005 HR 16 P PT 001 

 

Questions and Answers   

 12

43. Tender guarantee 

If the tender is submitted by a joint venture, is it 
acceptable to submitt tender guarantees from each 
partner of the joint venture, so the sum of guarantees 
of all partners is, as requested, at least EUR 
560.000,00?  

43. No. One tender guarantee must be submitted for a 
joint-venture/consortium in the amount of EUR 
560.000,00. 

44. Standards  

Could the report of quality of the rock mass and report 
of testing the raiilway ballast be JUS standards 
(Serbia), if the material is in accordance with the rock 
mass quality requirements? Is JUS standard 
acceptable?   

44. Yes, but the Report on the quality of rock mass 
and Report on the testing of the railway ballast which 
shall be a part of the Tender must clearly prove that 
the requirements mentioned in the Volume 3, 
Technical Specifications, 3.1.1.1. Standards, 3.5. 
Ballast and the attachment: Extract from the Geo-
technical Study, Volume 6 – Geo-technical Report are 
fulfilled. 

45. Minutes of the clarification  

We did not receive minutes of the clarification meeting 
and the site visit certificate of our site visit. Please 
send it to us, it has to be submitted with tender.  

45. The absence of a separate certificate of the site 
visit in the offer will not be a reason for rejection. 
Namely, the minutes of the site visit and the 
clarification meeting are considered as certificate of 
the site visit. Minutes are sent to all participants and 
should be enclosed to the tender after Form 4.6.9 - 
Further information. Minutes are also published at the 
following web-sites: 

http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/work/procedures/index_
en.htm and http://cfcu.mfin.hr 

 

46. In volume 3 “Technical specification” point 1.5.1 is 
indicated as follows: Tipper wagons are to be used for 
the transport of material excavated from the passing 
tracks in the stations and entrance area (east side) 
from the Vinkovci station. Where there is a possibility 
to transport the material with trucks as well, the 
Contractor shall select the solution that is the most 
favourable. In point 2.9 instead, is indicated that the 
unloading construction material way, shall be by 
wagons with lateral unloading. Considered the above 
operating procedure, we would to ask you if there is 
the possibility to use partially the side track during the 
24 hours and if it is availably, what are the hourly 
intervals for use this side track.  

46. The side track will be used for transport of sand-
layer and ballast (in tipper wagons with lateral 
unloading). Maximum two trains in 24 hours can be 
taken into consideration. The timing of delivery and 
unloading of material shall be determined by the traffic 
conditions. The hourly intervals can not be assured in 
advance. 

47. We want to know if You consider the Switzerland 
as an eligible country. 

47. No. Switzerland is not considered as an eligible 
country. 

48. Bill of quantities: 
Item 2.6.1.2                  The quantity unit is missing. 
Please inform. 
Item 2.8.e.2                  The quantity unit is missing. 
Please inform. 
Item 2.8.g-1.                 The quantity unit is “kg”. Is that 

48. 
2.6.1.2. The unit of measure is m³ 
 
2.8.e.2. The unit of measure is kg. 
 
2.8.g-1. The unit of measure is m² 
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correct or should it be “m2”? 
Item 4.1                        There must be something 
wrong. Quantity unit is “km”, but amount is 66.718,00. 
We assume that quantity unit is in “m”. Please confirm. 
Item 4.3 sleepers:         The amount/quantity is 
missing. Please inform. 
Item 4.3 fastening elements       The amount is 
missing. Please inform. 
For Item 2.8.h 1 to 2.8.h 4 and 2.8.h 6 to 2.8.h 11 the 
total quantity in the excel-List is missing. Please 
inform. 

 
4.1. The unit of measure is m. 
 
4.3. Sleepers - The unit of measure is provisional sum 
and the total amount is 1 (number of trips depend on 
the Tenderer and his organisation of delivery – one 
inspection before each delivery). Provisional sum shall 
cover all trips. 
4.3. Fastening elements – The total amount is 1. 
 
2.8.h.1. The total amount is 61,80 
2.8.h.2. The total amount is 45,50 
2.8.h.3. The total amount is 2,70 
2.8.h.4. The total amount is 1,80  
2.8.h.6. The total amount is 3,80 
2.8.h.7. The total amount is 12,20 
2.8.h.8. The total amount is 40,00 
2.8.h.9. The total amount is 85,00 
2.8.h.10. The total amount is 10,60 
2.8.h.11. The total amount is 7,00 

49. Will it be possible to optimize the track possesion 
times in order to use railbound track construction 
equipment such as track renewal train, formation 
rehabilitation machine etc.? 

49. No, it is not possible to optimize the track 
possesion times. 

50. Do you agree to change working phases?  

According to your provisional schedule of works the 
section Jankovci – Deletovci left track (WBS. 1.5) will 
be renewed before section Jankovci – Deletovci right 
track (WBS 1.6). This might cause problems because 
of the existing track distance of the two tracks. Will it 
be possible to change the two working phases – WBS 
1.6 first and WBS 1.5 afterwards? Please confirm. 

50. Yes. The enclosed Schedule of Works is 
PROVISIONAL showing primarily days of planed 
permanent track possession and sequence of works 
sections:  
- Vinkovci-Jankovci (both tracks), 
- Jankovci –Djeletovci (both tracks), 
- station Jankovci, 
- Djeletovci – Tovarnik (both tracks), 
- station Djeletovci, 
- station Tovarnik. 

Working phases should be proposed as part of Form 
4.6.3. Workplan and Programme (Volume 1; Section 4) 

51. Do you agree to change working phase Station 
Deletovci (WBS 1.7) and working phase (WBS 1.10) 
Station Tovarnik?  

According to the layout of the stations, track 4 and 5 in 
station Tovarnik cannot be used while section 
Deletovci – Tovarnik right track is closed for work. 
From this point of view it would be possible to renew 
track 4 and 5 in station Tovarnik within the same time. 
In order to make both tracks of the section Deletovci – 
Tovarnik available for traffic it would be very effective 
to renew tracks 1,2 and 3 of station Tovarnik 
subsequent to track 4 and 5. Therefore it would be 
possible to change working phase station Deletovci  
(WBS 1.7) and Station Tovarnik (WBS 1.10). Please 

51. No. The sequence of works on sections listed 
above in question 50 must be respected due to the 
signalling works that will follow the civil works. 

Detailed work plan will be agreed between the 
Contractor, the Engineer and the Employer (with 
assistance of the Final Beneficiary - CR Infrastructure) 
during the Inception phase. 
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confirm. 

52. Closing of track in Station Jankovci: 

Is deviated track at turnout 6 in station Jankovci still in 
operation? If yes, is it possible to close this track 
during renewal of the station? 

52. That track is rarely in operation and it will not be in 
operation during the works in station Jankovci. 

53. Renewal of section Tovarnik to state border: 

In which working phase do you envisage to renew the 
track from Tovarnik to the state border? According to 
Provisinal Schedule of Works we cannot see any track 
possesions. 

53. The works on the 800 m long section between 
Tovarnik and state border shall be planned for a later 
stage of the project implementation. Precise time 
schedule shall be agreed between the Contractor and 
the Employer (with assistance of the Final Beneficiary).  

The track possession shall be assured by the Final 
Beneficiary. 

54. The track and turnout renewals (new UIC 60) will 
only be executed on the main tracks. We assume that 
other tracks and turnouts (for example station 
premises) will not be renewed in this project. Is that 
correct? 

54. Yes. Necessary works on other tracks will be done 
under a separate contract and not as a part of this 
project. See Volume 3, sub-chapter 1.6. 
Reconstruction of Jankovci and ðeletovci station 
tracks, fifth paragraph and 2.5.1. 

55. Volume 3, Rails, Basic Conditions (page 49):  

Can you please explain, what is meant by “heat-
treatable steel (steel that is suitable for tempering)”?  

What is your request for steel quality of rails? Steel 
quality R 260 or higher? Please inform. 

Do you also agree, if long welded rails are also 
delivered in lengths of 60 m? 

55.  

‘’Heat-treatable steel’’ has to allow for repairs of a 
damaged running surface of the rail by welding. 

Volume 3, sub-chapter 3.2.1. The request for rail 
quality is minimum R260. 

No. Length of rails shall be continuous casting of 
minimum 90 m. 

56.  Ballast: 

Will it be possible to use old recycled ballast 
(according to the specifications of Volume 3) and use it 
as bottom ballast. Please confirm. 

56. No, this is not possible. 

 

57. Running of trains on Vinkovci to Tovarnik 
railway line: 

Can you please give us information about the running 
of trains on the railway line Vinkovci to Tovarnik. 

57. On Vinkovci to Tovarnik section both freight and 
passenger traffic is operated. The trains are running 
according to the timetable, 24 hours a day, 7 days in a 
week. 

The timetable is developed for each year and for the 
year 2008 timetable will be publicised at the end of 
2007. The passenger trains operation is published at 
the following website: http://www.hznet.hr/  

The freight traffic schedule is not publicised and varies 
each year. For 2007 the frequency was as follows: 

 22:00 – 06:00      20 freight trains per day     
 06:00 – 22:00      32 freight trains per day     
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Also, since trains are always running out of the 
schedule (exceptional traffic) depending of the season, 
it is noticed that there are in average 100 trains 
running on the track from Vinkovci to Tovarnik on both 
tracks each day in total for both freight and passenger 
traffic. 

During the works implemetation at one section, one 
track will be under permanent track possession and all 
trains running in both directions will be running on the 
other track. A specific train schedule will be developed 
for each section of the works one month before the 
commencement of the works implementation and will 
be delivered to the successful tenderer.  

58. Grinding of rail: 

There is a discrepance between Tender Dossier, 
Volume  3, § 2.9.3 “only track between the stations will 
be grinded” and No. 1.1.15 in the Bill of Quantities (all 
new installed rails 66.099 m rail UIC 60 will be 
grinded). Please inform, if also new UIC-track in 
stations will be grinded. 

Grinding of new turnouts is not intended? Please 
confirm. 

58. Grinding of rails shall be offered per m but for the 
total quantity of 66,099.00 m (total length of both 
tracks excluding turnouts). Grinding shall be 
arranged when “the works on the both tracks of each 
section between two stations are finished” which 
means three times during the works. Grinding plan will 
be mutually agreed between the Contractor the 
Engineer and the Employer (with assistance of the 
Final Beneficiary - CR Infrastructure) during the 
Inception phase.Grinding of turnouts is not requested. 

59. Are the disposal areas free of explosive material? 59. Yes, disposal areas are free of explosive material. 

60. Are the roads and the ancillary roads free of 
explosive materials?  

60. Yes, roads and ancillary roads are free of 
explosive materials. 

61. While carrying out the tendered works, will it be 
allowed to use heavy rail-track machinery not earlier 
mentioned in the tender conditions: machinery for 
excavation and embedding buffers (AHM-800, PM-
200-1), machinery for gauge replacement (SUZ-500, 
SUZ-350), which machinery can fulfill all requested 
technical standards and all working operations set by 
the bill of costs? 

61. No.  

The machines listed in the question do not 
correspond to the requirements defined in Volume 3, 
chapters 2.(Performance of works) and 2.9.(Sections 
between stations) where a description of phases of 
works, schedule and progress of works (2.9.1.) and 
the machinery (2.9.4.) for the requested work 
technology are defined.  

The technology of works set out in chapter 
2.9.(Sections between stations) is defined as such 
due to the weak and unstable sub-soil and thence 
specific requirements were derived as follows: 

1. Open excavation 1 m deep in length of 400 m to 
maximum 800 m enables continuous measuring 
and testing of compressibility (at each 200 meters) 
on the formation level (sand-layer base) and 
according to the results the preparation of surface 
with an adequate number of passings by static roller 
in designed lateral inclination.  
If during the excavation weak sections are 
discovered that have not been detected by geo-
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mechanical drilling and tests (at each 500 m), such 
zones being of non-coherent material (clay and dust 
material or peat), the additional stabilisation of the 
formation shall be done by pressing of old ballast 
into the clay and dust material of the embankment 
to achieve the designed/requested compressibility.  

2. The sand-layer shall insure the water-resistance to 
prevent water penetration down to the level of 
bedding, especially in case of non-coherent 
formation material. Only a sand-layer material of a 
particular grain size in accordance to the attached 
grain-size curve and moistened and compressed by 
compactors guarantees the water-resistance. The 
requested grain-size curve can not be reached and 
controlled if the sand-layer is placed by AHM 800 
making a mixture of crushed old ballast and new 
material.  
The results of the compressibility tests at each 200 
m on the sand-layer surface shall determine the 
compacting energy necessary to reach the required 
degree of compression, if necessary by multiple 
passing of compactors. 

 
The work technology and the machines requested in 
the Tender dossier are a result of the above explained 
circumstances. 
 
 

62. Is the described track-work technology prescribed? 
Is it possible to use track bounded track renewal 
machines, balast renewal machines, subgrade 
rehabilitation machines?  

62. Yes, the described technology is mandatory. Also, 
please see question number 61. 

63. In the technical specifications is an LA-RB =< 16 
for the switches on concrete bearers foreseen. Please 
confirm that this is the right LA index! 

63. Yes. The LA index for ballast for turnout zone shall 
be equal or lower than 16. 

64. Is it necessary to install glued insulated joints in the 
new track and switches. Please give us information 
about the positions and the quantities? 

64. The glued insulated joints shall be offered and 
calculated in the BoQ, items 1.1.14., 1.2.2. and 1.2.3. 
(see also Volume 3, Technical Specifications, 1.4. 
Permanent way, fifth paragraph, 3.4. Turnouts, fourth 
paragraph and  3.4.1.4. Closure rails, first paragraph). 

65. Are the secondary tracks in the stations Jankovci 
and ðeletovci part of this contract? 

65. No. Only substructure works and first layer of 
ballast (item 1.13.) are calculated for the whole lengths 
and width of the reconstructed stations of Jankovci and 
Djeletovci (Volume 3, 2.10.1, 2.10.2.). Side tracks will 
be reconstructed under a separate contract. 

66. Are the necessary materials for the catenary works 
part of this contract? 

66. No, necessary materials for the catenary works are 
not part of this contract. See Volume 3, 1.13. Free-
Issue Material and Note after TOTAL 3. in the BoQ. 

67. Is it necessary to grind the turnouts and the 67. No, this is not necessary. Please see also question 
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secondary tracks? number 58. 

68. With reference to the magnitude of works and 
coordination required with the local 
partners/companies to obtain competitive prices we 
kindly request extension of time. Please approve 4 to 6 
weeks extension of time in the bid submission date.    

68. Unfortunately, the extension of deadline for 
submission of offers can not be approved as this would 
imply shortening the period of implementation. 

69. We refer to the Tender Dossier, Volume 1, clause 
14 content and presentation of tender, sub-clause 
14.3.10., please clarify if, in consideration to the point 
2.3.3. of the Practical Guide, the financing of the 
project either BUDGET or EDF?   

69. Practical Guide articles, governing contracting 
procedures for EC external aid contracts, that are 
applicable for this project are related to BUDGET 
provisions since this project is financed from the 
European Communities general budget (Budget). 

70. In reference to Volume 1 of the Tender Dossier, 
clause 3 – Participation, sub-clause 3.3., please 
confirm that the Contracting Authority may accept as 
evidence for legal status/defining the constitution, the 
registration certificate? 

70. Yes, that is correct. The official document of the 
Chamber of Commerce, or other national authority 
which is responsible to issue the registration 
certificate, is required. 

71. In reference to Volume 1 of the Tender Dossier, 
clause 3 – Participation, sub-clause 3.6., we 
understand that ‘’origin’’ means, materials can be 
supplied from all members of the European Union. 
Please confirm. 

71. Yes. All member states of the European Union are 
considered as eligible countries and therefore 
materials can be supplied from any member state. 

72. We have purchased the tender documents on 10 
October 2007. After review of the tender 
documentation, especially Section I – Instructions to 
Tenderers, subsection 7 – site inspection, we have the 
obligation to visit and inspect the site and to include 
certificate of site visit in our tender. As we have been 
informed and as stated in subsection 7 of the 
Instructions to Tenderers a site visit took place on 02 
October 2007 – before purchase of tender 
documentation on our part. 

We want to fulfill all tender related obligations and 
request a site visit before the tender submission. Send 
us the proposed date of site visit per fax to our 
address.   

72. According to article 13 of the Procurement Notice 
and article 7 of the Instructions to Tenderers, the 
Contracting Authority was obliged to organise a site 
visit on 02 October 2007 and the clarification meeting 
on the following day. Tenderers that were not 
participating at the site visit have an obligation to visit 
and inspect the site of the works for the purpose of 
assessing factors necessary for the preparation of his 
tender at their own responsibility. This may be 
achieved with assistance of the Final Beneficiary 
institution: 

Croatian Railways – Infrastructure,  
Ulica Antuna Mihanovića 12,  
Fax: +385 1 378 2811 
 
The absence of a separate certificate of the site visit in 
the offer will not be a reason for rejection. Namely, the 
minutes of the site visit and the clarification meeting 
are considered as certificate of the site visit. Minutes 
are sent to all participants and should be enclosed to 
the tender after Form 4.6.9 - Further information. 
Minutes are also published at the following web-sites: 
http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/work/procedures/index_
en.htm and http://cfcu.mfin.hr  

73. What is with form Appendix to tender which is 
behind Tender declaration, in tender documentation, 
this form is almost fulfilled in total only few things 

73. Appendix to Tender is a summary of Employers 
requirements. It is provided to Tenderers for their 
signture and can not be changed in the offer. 
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tenderer has to input and internet link, that you send to 
us, on  word version on that form is almost empty and 
little bit different, which form shall we take in 
consideration as a correct one? This question is also 
concerning all other forms. 

All other forms (4.1 – 4.6, Tender form) must be 
completed by tenderers using the templates provided 
in the Tender Dossier and supplemented by all 
information that tenderers consider as relevant.    

74. In form Appendix to tender what we have to fill at 
Engineers name and address, on which engineer is 
this concerning? 

74. Appendix to Tender is a summary of Employers 
requirements. It is provided to Tenderers for their 
signture and can not be changed in the offer. 

Remaining information will be inserted in this form by 
the Employer after the evaluation process is 
completed.  

75. Do we have to put numbers on all tender pages 
from beginning till the last page in the shape 125/1, 
125/2, 125/3,….125/125 or we have to put it on other 
way? 

75. The exact style of numbering the pages is not 
defined. However, it is important to number all the 
pages and the manner proposed in the question is 
acceptable. 

76. When we will receive confirmation that we where in 
site inspection and also MoM from meeting the day 
after site inspection 03.10.2007 and do we have to put 
it in tender documentation behind 14.3.12. or on other 
place in tender? 

76. The absence of a separate certificate of the site 
visit in the offer will not be a reason for rejection. 
Namely, the minutes of the site visit and the 
clarification meeting are considered as certificate of 
the site visit. Minutes are sent to all participants and 
should be enclosed to the tender after Form 4.6.9 - 
Further information. Minutes are also published at the 
following web-sites: 

http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/work/procedures/index_
en.htm and http://cfcu.mfin.hr  

 

77. Do we have to sign all tender documentation 
VOLUME 2, 3, 5 or just Contract form, general 
conditions, particular conditions and attach with our 
tender behind form 14.3.12. All other documents 
requested in Clause 4 or on other place in tender? 

77. It is obligatory to sign Forms 4.1 – 4.6; Tender 
Form including Appendix to Tender (Volume 1, Section 
2) and initial all pages Particular Conditions of Contract 
(Volume 2, Section 3) and Financial offer (Bill of 
Quantities).  

78. Do we have to translate all tender documents on 
English even technical specification of machines? 

78. All part of Tender Dossier must be in english as 
stipulated in article 13 of the Instructions to Tenderers. 
In case certain documents are in other language (i.e. 
brochures, certificates issued by national authorities, 
etc.) the translation in english must be enclosed.  

79. Can we stop the traffic for 2 days when we are 
building for example culvert? 

79. The necessary track possesion will be requested 
by the Contractor. See Volume 3, 2.7.1. first 
paragraph: The Final Beneficiary shall provide for track 
possession in accordance with the Contractor’s 
detailed time programme (confirmed by the Engineer) 
and the line operating capacity. 
There is only one culvert in km 130+917 where it is 
requested to build in a temporary 6m span structure 
before the permanent track posession of the section 
but there is no need to stop the traffic for two days. 
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80. Do we have to pay to HŽ for using the railway track 
during the construction period between Vinkovci and 
Tovarnik? 

80. No, you do not have to pay to Croatian Railways 
for using the railway track during the construction 
period between Vinkovci and Tovarnik. 

81. In the technical specification it is written that we 
shall deliver and build in rails with a length of 90m. 

1. Can we deliver shorter rails and weld it on site? 

2. If we can what is the minimum length of the rails? 

81. No. See Volume 3, sub-chapter 3.3.1. Length of 
rail: continuous casting of minimum 90 m and Volume 
3, sub-chapter 2.9. eleventh paragraph: If the rails are 
welded in the track by aluminotermic process the rails 
shall be a minimum of 180 meters long. 

82. Will it be allowed to the companies owned by the 
Croatian railways (HŽ) to participate in the tender in 
the role of tenderer/JV member or 
subcontractor/subsupplier?  

Will their appearance in the tender be treated as a 
conflict of interest (Instruction to Tenderers/3. 
Participation/ Cl.3.4.) and be the ground for exclusion 
of such a tender? 

82. Please see answer number 2. 

83. From Volume 3: Technical specifications, article 
4.1.3. Description and features of materials to be built 
in into the sub-structure. Is it necessary to use only the 
Diagram 4.1 Grain-size curve of the sub-structure of 
low permeability pursuant RiL 836, or is it also possible 
to use other type of grain-size curve, which you can 
find in the attachement (according to German 
standards ZTVT – StB 95 Materialen fur 
tragenschutschicht), which is widely used in Europe     
(attached as Annex 1)? 

ANNEX 1: grain-size curve 

83. Yes. It is possible to use different standard (grain-
size curve) provided that it fits within the buondary 
curves of the attached diagram. 

84. Volume 3, 3.3.2.2. Elasting fastening. Do you 
request DIN 53 455 or higher? Please inform. 

 

84. In Volume 3,   sub-chapter 3.3.2.2. Elastic 
fastening, (ii) Synthetic angled plates a correction 
should be made as follows: 

please replace “- notched impact strength > 6 kJ/m2 
(DIN 53 455)”  
with “notched impact strength > 6 kJ/m2 (DIN 53 453). 

DIN 53 453 should be cosidered as a minimum 
requirement. 
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ANNEX 1: Grain size curve (question No. 83.) 
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